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337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in part 
210 of the Commission’s Rules of 
Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part 
210). 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: May 6, 2021. 

Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2021–09990 Filed 5–11–21; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

INTERNATIONAL TRADE 
COMMISSION 

[Investigation No. 337–TA–1178] 

Certain Collapsible and Portable 
Furniture; Notice of a Commission 
Determination To Review in Part a 
Final Initial Determination and To 
Affirm With Modifications the Finding 
of No Violation of Section 337; 
Termination of the Investigation 

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade 
Commission. 
ACTION: Notice. 

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that 
the U.S. International Trade 
Commission (‘‘Commission’’) has 
determined to review in part the 
Administrative Law Judge’s (‘‘ALJ’’) 
final initial determination (‘‘FID’’), 
issued on February 18, 2021, and to 
affirm with modifications the FID’s 
finding of no violation of section 337 in 
the above-referenced investigation. The 
investigation is terminated. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Benjamin S. Richards, Esq., Office of the 
General Counsel, U.S. International 
Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, 
Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202) 
708–5453. Copies of non-confidential 
documents filed in connection with this 
investigation may be viewed on the 
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS) 
at https://edis.usitc.gov. For help 
accessing EDIS, please email 
EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. General 
information concerning the Commission 
may also be obtained by accessing its 
internet server at https://www.usitc.gov. 
Hearing-impaired persons are advised 
that information on this matter can be 
obtained by contacting the 
Commission’s TDD terminal on (202) 
205–1810. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The 
Commission instituted this investigation 
on October 3, 2019. 84 FR 52896 (Oct. 
3, 2019). The complaint, as amended, 
filed by GCI Outdoor, Inc., of Higganum, 
Connecticut (‘‘GCI’’), alleges violations 
of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, 
as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, in the 

importation into the United States, the 
sale for importation, or the sale within 
the United States after importation of 
certain collapsible and portable 
furniture by reason of infringement of 
certain claims of U.S. Patent No. 
9,282,824 (‘‘the ’824 patent’’) and U.S. 
Patent No. 9,060,611 (‘‘the ’611 patent’’). 
Id. at 52896–97. The complaint further 
alleges that a domestic industry exists. 
Id. at 52897. The Commission’s notice 
of investigation named the following 
respondents: Denovo Brands, LLC of 
Bentonville, Akansas; Zhenli 
(Zhangzhou) Industrial Co., Ltd. of 
Zhangzhou, Fujian, China; Fujian 
Zenithen Consumer Products Co., Ltd. 
of Fuzhou, Fujian, China; Zenithen 
Hong Kong Ltd. of Hong Kong; Zenithen 
USA LLC of Upland, California; 
Westfield Outdoor, Inc., d/b/a Westfield 
Outdoors of Indianapolis, Indiana; 
MacSports Inc. of La Verne, California; 
Meike (Qingdao) Leisure Products Co., 
Ltd of Qing Dao, China. Id. The Office 
of Unfair Import Investigations is not 
participating in the investigation. Id. 

During the course of the investigation, 
respondents Fujian Zenithen Consumer 
Products Co., Ltd., Zenithen Hong Kong 
Ltd., and Zenithen USA LLC were 
terminated from the investigation. The 
remaining respondents are Denovo 
Brands, LLC and Zhenli (Zhangzhou) 
Industrial Co., Ltd. (the ‘‘Denovo’’ 
respondents); Westfield Outdoor, Inc. 
(‘‘Westfield’’); and MacSports Inc. and 
Meike (Qingdao) Leisure Products Co., 
Ltd (the ‘‘MacSports’’ respondents) 
(collectively, ‘‘Respondents’’). 

On February 18, 2021, the ALJ issued 
his FID in this investigation. The FID 
found no violation of section 337. For 
the ’824 patent, the FID found that GCI 
established infringement by Denovo’s 
products but failed to establish that GCI 
satisfied the technical prong of the 
domestic industry requirement. The FID 
also found that Denovo did not establish 
that any of the asserted claims of the 
’824 patent is invalid. For the ’611 
patent, the FID found that GCI failed to 
establish infringement by Westfield’s 
and MacSports’ products but did 
establish that GCI satisfied the technical 
prong of the domestic industry 
requirement. The FID also found that 
Westfield and MacSports did not 
establish that any of the asserted claims 
of the ’611 patent is invalid. The FID 
additionally found that GCI established 
that it satisfied the economic prong of 
the domestic industry requirement for 
both asserted patents. 

On March 2, 2021 the parties 
submitted petitions seeking review of 
the FID. On March 10, 2021, the parties 
submitted responses to the others’ 
petitions. 

Having examined the record of this 
investigation, including the FID, the 
petitions for review, and the responses 
thereto, the Commission has determined 
to review the FID with respect to (1) all 
of the FID’s findings concerning the ’824 
patent; (2) infringement and validity of 
the ’611 patent; and (3) the FID’s 
findings concerning the economic prong 
of the domestic industry requirement. 
The Commission has determined not to 
review the remainder of the FID. 

On review, the Commission has 
determined to affirm the FID’s finding of 
no violation of section 337 with regard 
to the ’824 patent and the ’611 patent. 
In connection with that determination 
the Commission has also determined to 
modify and supplement certain of the 
FID’s subsidiary findings. The 
Commission has also determined to take 
no position on certain portions of the 
FID. The Commission opinion is issued 
concurrently herewith. 

The investigation is hereby 
terminated. 

The Commission vote for this 
determination took place on May 6, 
2021. 

The authority for the Commission’s 
determination is contained in section 
337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as 
amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in Part 
210 of the Commission’s Rules of 
Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part 
210). 

By order of the Commission. 
Issued: May 6, 2021. 

Lisa Barton, 
Secretary to the Commission. 
[FR Doc. 2021–09989 Filed 5–11–21; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 7020–02–P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms 
and Explosives 

[OMB Number 1140–0072] 

Agency Information Collection 
Activities; Proposed eCollection of 
eComments Requested; Revision of a 
Currently Approved Collection; 
Explosives Employee Possessor 
Questionnaire—ATF Form 5400.28 

AGENCY: Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, 
Firearms and Explosives, Department of 
Justice. 
ACTION: 60-Day notice. 

SUMMARY: The Bureau of Alcohol, 
Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives 
(ATF), Department of Justice (DOJ), will 
submit the following information 
collection request to the Office of 
Management and Budget (OMB) for 
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review and approval in accordance with 
the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995. 
The proposed collection OMB 1140– 
0072 (Explosives Employee Possessor 
Questionnaire—ATF Form 5400.28) is 
being revised to include additional 
questions, and a new format and layout 
to improve user experience. This 
collection is also being published to 
obtain comments from the public and 
affected agencies. 
DATES: Comments are encouraged and 
will be accepted for 60 days until July 
12, 2021. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: If 
you have additional comments, 
regarding the estimated public burden 
or associated response time, 
suggestions, or need a copy of the 
proposed information collection 
instrument with instructions, or 
additional information, please contact: 
Shawn Stevens, Federal Explosives 
Licensing Center either by mail at 44 
Needy Road, Martinsburg, WV 25405, 
by email at Shawn.Stevens@atf.gov, or 
by telephone at 304–616–4400. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Written 
comments and suggestions from the 
public and affected agencies concerning 
the proposed collection of information 
are encouraged. Your comments should 
address one or more of the following 
four points: 
—Evaluate whether the proposed 

collection of information is necessary 
for the proper performance of the 
functions of the agency, including 
whether the information will have 
practical utility; 

—Evaluate the accuracy of the agency’s 
estimate of the burden of the 
proposed collection of information, 
including the validity of the 
methodology and assumptions used; 

—Evaluate whether and if so, how the 
quality, utility, and clarity of the 
information to be collected can be 
enhanced; and 

—Minimize the burden of the collection 
of information on those who are to 
respond, including through the use of 
appropriate automated, electronic, 
mechanical, or other technological 
collection techniques or other forms 

of information technology, e.g., 
permitting electronic submission of 
responses. 

Overview of This Information 
Collection 

1. Type of Information Collection 
(check justification or form 83): 
Revision of a currently approved 
collection. 

2. The Title of the Form/Collection: 
Explosives Employee Possessor 
Questionnaire. 

3. The agency form number, if any, 
and the applicable component of the 
Department sponsoring the collection: 

Form number (if applicable): ATF 
Form 5400.28. 

Component: Bureau of Alcohol, 
Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives, U.S. 
Department of Justice. 

4. Affected public who will be asked 
or required to respond, as well as a brief 
abstract: 

Primary: Individuals or households. 
Other (if applicable): Business or 

other for-profit. 
Abstract: The Explosives Employee 

Possessor Questionnaire—ATF Form 
5400.28 will be used to determine if an 
individual is qualified to serve as an 
employee possessor, who can ship, 
transport, receive, and/or possess 
materials for an explosives business or 
operation. 

5. An estimate of the total number of 
respondents and the amount of time 
estimated for an average respondent to 
respond: An estimated 10,000 
respondents will use the form annually, 
and it will take each respondent 
approximately 20 minutes to complete 
their responses. 

6. An estimate of the total public 
burden (in hours) associated with the 
collection: The estimated annual public 
burden associated with this collection is 
3,334 hours, which is equal to 10,000 (# 
of respondents) * .3333 (20 minutes). 

If additional information is required 
contact: Melody Braswell, Department 
Clearance Officer, United States 
Department of Justice, Justice 
Management Division, Policy and 
Planning Staff, Two Constitution 

Square, 145 N Street NE, 3E.405A, 
Washington, DC 20530. 

Dated: May 7, 2021. 
Melody Braswell, 
Department Clearance Officer for PRA, U.S. 
Department of Justice. 
[FR Doc. 2021–10005 Filed 5–11–21; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 4410–FY–P 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 

Drug Enforcement Administration 

[Docket No. DEA–826] 

Bulk Manufacturer of Controlled 
Substances Application: Patheon API 
Manufacturing, Inc. 

AGENCY: Drug Enforcement 
Administration, Justice. 
ACTION: Notice of application. 

SUMMARY: Patheon API Manufacturing, 
Inc., has applied to be registered as a 
bulk manufacturer of basic class(es) of 
controlled substance(s). Refer to 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION listed 
below for further drug information. 
DATES: Registered bulk manufacturers of 
the affected basic class(es), and 
applicants therefore, may file written 
comments on or objections to the 
issuance of the proposed registration on 
or before July 12, 2021. Such persons 
may also file a written request for a 
hearing on the application on or before 
July 12, 2021. 
ADDRESSES: Written comments should 
be sent to: Drug Enforcement 
Administration, Attention: DEA Federal 
Register Representative/DPW, 8701 
Morrissette Drive, Springfield, Virginia 
22152. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: In 
accordance with 21 CFR 1301.33(a), this 
is notice that on March 18, 2021, 
Patheon API Manufacturing, Inc., 309 
Delaware Street, Greenville, South 
Carolina 29605–5420, applied to be 
registered as a bulk manufacturer of the 
following basic class(es) of controlled 
substance(s): 

Controlled substance Drug code Schedule 

Gamma Hydroxybutyric Acid ........................................................................................................................................... 2010 I 
Tetrahydrocannabinols .................................................................................................................................................... 7370 I 
5-Methoxy-N-N-Dimethyltryptamine ................................................................................................................................ 7431 I 
a-Methyltryptamine .......................................................................................................................................................... 7432 I 
Psilocybin ......................................................................................................................................................................... 7437 I 
Thebaine .......................................................................................................................................................................... 9333 II 
Oxymorphone .................................................................................................................................................................. 9652 II 
Noroxymorphone ............................................................................................................................................................. 9668 II 
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